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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
WESTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION and 
PEOPLE OF THE STA TE OF NEW YORK, by 
LETITIA JAMES, Attorney General of the State 
of New York, 

Plaintiffs, 

V. 

HYLAN ASS ET MANAGEMENT, LLC, et al., 

Defendants. 

Case No.: 1: 18-cv-00710-EA W 

STIPULATED ORDER FOR 
PERMANENT INJUNCTION AND 
MONETARY JUDGMENT AS TO 
FRANK A. UNGARO, JR. AND 
WORLDWIDE PROCESSING 
GROUP,LLC 

Plaintiffs the Federal Trade Commission ("Commission") and the People of the State of 

New York, by the Attorney General of the State of New York ("NY AG"), commenced this civil 

action on June 26, 2018 by filing a complaint (the "Complaint") for temporary, preliminary, and 

permanent injunctive relief and other equitable relief pursuant to Section 13(6) of the Federal 

Trade Commission Act ("FTC Act"), 15 U.S.C. § 53(6), Section 814(a) of the Fair Debt 

Collection Practices Act ("FDCPA"), 15 U.S.C. § 1692l(a), N.Y. Executive Law§ 63(12), and 

N.Y. General Business Law Article 22-A, § 349 and Article 29-H, § 601 . Plaintiffs amended 

their complaint on August 27, 2018 and named additional defendants. Plaintiffs and Defendants 

Frank A. Ungaro, Jr. and Worldwide Processing Group, LLC, stipulate to the entry of this 

Stipulated Order for Permanent Injunction and Monetary Judgment ("Order") to resolve all 

matters in dispute in this action between them. 

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED as follows: 

FINDINGS 

1. This Court has jurisdiction over this matter. 



') The Complaint charges that Defendants participated in deceptive and abusive Debt­

Collection practices. in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S .C. § 45(a). the 

FDCPA. 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692-1692p. and N.Y. General Business Law Article 22-A § 349 

and Article 29-H § 60 I. 

3. Defendants neither admit nor deny any of the allegations in the Complaint, except as 

specifi cally stated in this Order. Only for purposes of this action, Defendants admit the 

facts necessary to establish jurisdiction. 

4. Defendants waive any claim that they may have under the Equal Access to Justice Act. 

28 U.S.C. § 2412 , concerning the prosecution of this action through the date of this 

Order. and agree to bear their own costs and attorney fees. 

5. Defendants and Plaintiffs waive all rights to appeal or other.vise challenge or contest the 

valid ity of this Order. 
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the credit originato r, (c) documents with the current or former name. 

address, and telephone phone number of the debtor, (d) documents with 

the debtor's account number. in whole or in part. and account statements. 

( e) documents with the date and amount of any payments, ( f) documents 

with the date and outstanding balance at charge-off, and (g) Debt 

Collector's notes: 

2. the information that Defendants received from data aggregators. data 

brokers, consumer reporting agencies. skip tracers. and other third-parties. 

such as: (a) documents with the current or fonner name, address, and 

telephone number of the debtor, (b) documents with consumer-report 

information, including credit scores and updates to the information in 

credit reports, and (c) the scoring of the Debt through the use of a 

predictive model: 

3. the information that Defendants created or maintained in co llecting on 

the Debt. such as Debt Collectors' notes; and the information 

Defendants received from the debtor denying. disputing, or challenging 

the claim that the debtor owes the Debt or the amount of the Debt such 

as: (a) documents with the debtor's current or former name, address, 

and telephone number, (b) receipts or other evidence of payment from 

the credit originator. the creditor to whom the Debt is owed, or a Debt 

Collector. (c) canceled checks, bank account statements. credit card 

statements. and other documents evidencing payment, and (d) a 

consumer report relevant 
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arrange (i ) a short sale of a dwelling or other collateral. (ii) a deed-in-lieu of 

for closure, or (iii ) any other disposition of a mortgage, loan, Debt, or obligation 

other than a sale to a third party that is not the secured or unsecured loan holder. 
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3. that Defendants have the authority to collect any Debt: 

4. that the consumer has a legal obligation to pay Defendants: 

5. that the law allows them to contact third parties without limitation: or 

6. any other material fact 

B. Commun icati ng with Persons other than the consumer. the consumer' s attorney, 

a consumer reporting agency if otherwise permitted by law, the creditor, the 

attorney of the creditor. the attorney of the Debt Collector, the consumer·s 

spouse, parent (if the consumer is a minor). guardian, executor, or administrator 

for purposes other than acquiring location information about the consumer. 
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F_ Violating any provision of the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692-1692p (a copy of 

which is attached hereto as Attachment A), including, but not limited to, Section 

807. 15 U.S.C. § l692e. 

II. 

PROHIBITED MISREPRESENT A TIO NS RELA TI G TO 
FINANCIAL PRODUCTS OR SERVICES 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants, Defendants· offi cers, agents. employees. 

and attorneys, and all other Persons in active concert or participation with any of them. who 

receive actual notice of this Order, whether acting directly or indirectly, in connection with 

promoting or offering for sale any Financial Product or Service, are permanently restrained and 

enjoined from misrepresenting or assisting others in misrepresenting, expressly or by 

implication. any material fact, including but not limited to: 

A. the terms or rates that arc available for any loan or other extension of credit: 
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D. the nature, expertise. position. or job tit le of any Person wh
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Defendants have knowledge or reason to believe that a specific Debt 

Po1tfolio 
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five (5) business days if the denial, dispute, or challenge is not 

investigated under this proviso. 

(i) If the results of the Investigation show that the debtor owes 

the Debt in the amount asserted. Defendants, within fi ve (5) 

days of reaching their conclusion, shall provide ve
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(iii) If the results of the Investigation show that the debtor does 

owe the Debt but not in the amount th
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receive actual notice of th is Order. whether acting directly or indirectly, in connection with 

promoting or o
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C. for customer information that any Defendant is prohibited from disclosing, using, 

or benefitting from by Section 
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2. the deposition of the Individual Defendant and the Corporate Defendant 

on August 29, 2018; 

3. the Financial Statements~ including the attachments, of the Corporate 

Defendant, signed by Individual Defendant on July 9, 2018; and 

4. Individual Defendant's 2014, 2015 , and 2016 federal and New· York tax 

returns submitted electronically on August 7. 2018. 

D. The suspension of the judgment will be lifted as to any Defendant iC upon motion 

by the Plaintiffs. the Court finds that Defendant failed to disclose any materia l 

asset, materially misstated the value of any asset, or made any other material 
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H. The facts alleged in the Complaint establish all elements necessary to sustain an 

action by the Commission or the NY AG pursuant to Section 523(a)(2)(A) of the 

Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523(a)(2)(A), and this Order will have collateral 

estoppel effect for such purposes. 

I. Defendants acknowledge that their Taxpayer Identification Numbers (Social 

Security Numbers or Employer Identification Numbers), which Defendants 

previously submitted to the Commission, may be used for collecting and reporting 

on any delinquent amount arising out of this Order, in accordance with 31 U.S.C. 

§7701. 

J. All money paid to the Plaintiffs pursuant to this Order may be deposited into a 

fund administered by the Plaintiffs or their i c l u d s i n g  cnsum(er )Tj�0.0064 Tc 4.359 0 Td�ereresis u n d  any ittendant f o r  t h 7 0 3  T c  1 5 1 6 3  0  T d � ( t h e  ) T j � 0 . 1 0 6  g � 0 . 0 6 6 9  T c - 1 2 8 3 8 8 2  - 2 . 4 6 0  T d � ( a d m i n i s r c a t i o n  ) T j � 0 . 0 2 7  g � 0 . 0 5  T c  0  - 1 1 9 6 1 3 9  1 0 . 3  0 3 8 1 3 . 1 3 3 4 9 2 5 2 1  T m � ( o f  ) T j � 0 . 0 9 7 1  T c  0  - 1 0 . 3  1 0 . 3  0 3 8 1 3 . 1 3 3 8 1 0 . 6 7  T m � ( a n y  ) T j � 0 . 0 0 6 4  T c  1 . 8 9  0  T d � e r e r e s i s  funJ. f ,  r e r e s u e n a n t ve of the Plaintiffs tats 

to cnsum(esh )Tj�-0.035 Tc 0 -975853 10.3 03557.923-34882 Tm�(s. )Tj�0.106 g�0.2386 Tc 0 -10.3 10.3 03557.92325.251 Tm�whcoly  o

e r  

r  esis cmpleiteJ. t h e  P l a i n t i f f s  pply  any for 

e r  t h e y  

or be to the 

aed the 

Plaintiffs of any funfs for 

forpaiTj�-0.335  Tc4.5572 0 Td�(the Tj�0.235 TTc 15163072Td�(the )Tj�0.029 g�0..952 88 --2088 022.460 22�Ccmpllamiss )Tj�0.027 g�0.05 T2725.2683672Td�(the )Tj�0.109426c 1.076 0 Td�shald for fun Td�Tthe erdeposit
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describe if he knows or should know due to his own involvement); (d) 

describe in detail whether and how that Defendant is in compliance with 

each Section of this Order; and (e) provide a copy of each Order 

Acknowledgment obtained pursuant to this Order, unless previously 

submitted to the Commission. 

2. Additionally . Indiv idual Defendant must: (a) identify all telephone 

numbers and all phys ical. postal. email and Internet addresses, inc luding 

a ll residences: (b) identify all business activities. including any business 

for which such Defendant performs services whether as an employee or 

otherwi. e and any entity in which such Defendant has any ownership 

interest; and (c) describe in detail such Defendant" s involvement in each 
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2. Add itionally. Individual Defendant must report any change in : (a) name. 

including aliases or fictitious name. or residence address; or (b) title or 

role in any business activity. including any business for which such 

Defendant performs services whether as an employee or otherwise and any 

entity in which such Defendant has any ownership interest, and identi �
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christopher.boyd@ag.ny.gov or sent by overnight courier (not the U.S. Postal 

Service) to: Bureau of Consumer Frauds. ew· York State Office of the Attorney 

General, 350 Main Street, Suite 300A. Buffal o, New York 14202. The subject 

line must begin: FTC v. Hylan Asset Management, LLC. et al. 

XI. 

RECORD KEEPING 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants must create certain records for 20 years 

after entry of the Order, and retain each such record for 5 years. Specifically, Corporate 

Defendant and Individual Defendant for any business that such Defendant, individually or 

collectively with any other Defendant, is a majority owner or controls directly or indirectly, must 

create and retain the following records: 

A. accounting records showing the revenues from all business activity ; 

B. personnel records showing, for each Person providing services, whether as an 

employt:e or otherwise. that Person· s: name; addresses; telephone numbers: job 

title or position: dates of service; and ( if applicable) the reason for termination; 

C. records of all consumer complaints and refund requests. whether received direct ly 

or indirectly. such as through a third party, and any response; 

D. all r ~ords necessary to demonstrate 

in ad 2.482 g52 T79 0 Td�(~)Tj�0.12055ponse; 36g�0.0067submism�(os7 40 s)Tj�1.0192 T565Tc 1.043 0 Td�(mj�18 305.41 Tc 0.038P1.868iffs;�(ords )Tj�0.02 g�018.8 10c 20.01038E g�0.0305 Tc -64g�0 Tc 1.444 0 Td�(r )Tj�39)Tj�0.150 Tc 1.04copie6767 Tm�(of )Tj�0.6694 Tp9638 �0.0252 Tc 3.855 0.540.1926�0.8 331.55.5966 409.6669 0.030ce
; 
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D. Upon written request from a representative of the Plaintiffs, any consumer reporting 

agency must furnish consumer reports concerning Individual Defendant. pursuant to 

Section 604(1) of the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U .S.C. § 1681 b(a)(l ). 

XIII. 

RETENTION OF JURISDICTION 

IT IS FURTH ER ORDERED that this Court retains jurisdiction of this matter for 

purposes of construction, modification, and enforcement of this Order. 

25 
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§ 1691f TITLE 15-COMMERCE AND TRADE Page 1498 

Subsec. (g). Pub. L . 111- 203. §108516). s ubst,ituted "(9)" 
for "(3)' ' . '
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§ 1692c TITLE 15- COMMERCE AND TRADE Page 1500 

of acquiring location information about the con­
sumer shall-

(1) identify himself, state that he is confirm­
ing· or co1Tecting location informati on con­
cerning the consumer, and, only if expressly 
requested, identify his employer: 

(2) not state that such consumer owes any 
debt: 

(3) not communicate with any such person 
more than once unless requested to do so by 
such person or unless the debt collector rea­
sonably believes that the earlier response of 
such person is erroneous or incomplete and 
Lhat such person now has co.4 34o476 0 Td��0 -9.319 8.5 0 682.33 34495.61 Tm�Aj�0 -9.�0.0426 Tc 0 -8.8.5 062 432.49 Tm�(now351icate )Tj�0.0865 8.5 014 8.5 0 62232 412.81 5 34requeste8

8te 

8
t

e
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§ 1692f TITLE 15- COMMERCE AND TRADE Page 1502 

§ 1692f. Unfair practices (2) the name of the creditor to whom the 
debt is owed: 

A debt collector may not use unfair or uncon­ (3) a statement that unless the consumer, 
scionable means to collect or attempt to collect within thirty days after receipt of the notice. 
any debt. Without limiting the general applica­ disputes the validity of the debt, or any por­
tion of the foregoing, the following conduct is a tion thereof, the debt will be assumed to be 
violation of this secLion: valid by the debt collector: 

(1) 'l'he collection of any amount (including (4) a statement that if the consumer notifies 
any interest, fee, charge, or expense incidental the debt collector in incm�(ts05 Tc/T1_3 1.1f-9Tj�0520275 8.4 .3�0 5.7.05m eof, m5 Tc 0 -9.7 -6371893 8.453�0 5.480d56l'he instru05 Tc 0 -9.7-959024714 8.53�0 5.430.89(collf(debt, )Tj�0 -8.9462 8.53�0 5.414-98�(incidental )TjTm�806893 8.453�0 5.398.39(collmurm�sental )  545T8.4 0 652.33 48753�0 5.368 683collection )T�0 Tc 0 -�02433.33 48753�0 5.352.1�(incidreaten­tal 8319274�8.4 0 652.33 487530.5.7.050392 Tming·tion )T�0 Tc 0 -059621.5.8001487530.5.489 66l'he 01·tion ).7 -738.9033 8.30.5.478.643collinstitutingebt, 1 2  T m � ( t s 0 5 w r ) T  
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§ 16921 TITLE 15
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§1692m TITLF~ 15- COMMirnCE AND TRADI!J Page 1506 

18131s>> shall have the meaning given to them in section chapter is being achieved and a summary of the 
llbl of the International Banking· Act of 1978 (12 U.S.C. enforcement actions taken by the But·eau under 
31011." section 1692/ of this title . 

Pub. L. 102- 242, §212(e)(l) , a dded par. (1) and strucl< (b) In the exercise of its functions under this 
out fol'mer par. (lJ which read as follows: ·•section 8 of 

subchapter, the Bureau may obtain upon request 
Federal Deposi t Insul'ance AcL, in the case of 

" CA ) national banks. by the Comptroller of the Cu1·­ the views of any other Federal agency which ex­
rency: ercises enforcement functions under section 

•·< B l membel' banks of the Fetleral Reserve System 16921 of this t i tle. 
Cother than national l1anks1. by the Federal Reserve 

(Pub. L . 90- 321. title VIII , § 815. as added Pub. L . 
Board;and 

95-109, 20, 1977, 91 Stat. 882; amended Pub. " (C J banks the deposits Ol' accounts of which are in­ Sept. 
sured I.Jy the Federal Deposit Insurance CorpoL

.
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tion 2 of title 1). municipality. or comparable from the date of its enactment [Nov. 10, 1978]. except. 

jurisdiction. including State attorneys general that sections 909 and 911 [sections 1693g, 1693i of this 

who act as chief elected or appointed prosecut­ title] take effect upon the expiration of ninety days 
after the date of enactment." ing· attorneys in a district. county (as so de­ [Pub. L. 111- 203. § 1073(al(3). which directed renumber­

fined ). municipality or comparable jurisdic­ ing of sec tion 922 of Pub. L. 90- 321 as section 923 effec­
tion. who may be 1
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